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INTRODUCTION

Roy Turner was born in Toronto, Canada, in 1917 and began his
career in l i thography dur ing the depression years. The Second Wor ld

War and act ive serv ice in the Air Force interrupted his career tempo

r a r i l y .
Turner d iscusses in de ta i l the s ix -month s t r i ke and lockouts in

1949, which involved f ive cit ies in Eastern Canada and centered around
the issues of wel fare and pension benef i ts . In 1956 Turner was e lected

f u l l - t i m e v i c e - p r e s i d e n t o f h i s To r o n t o l o c a l w i t h r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s

most ly in the a rea o f o rgan iz ing . He descr ibes the re la t ionsh ips and
jurisdict ional agreements between the Amalgamated Lithographers and the
o the r g raph i c a r t s l oca l s i n To ron to a t t ha t t ime—the I n te rna t i ona l

Typographica l Union and the I .P.P. & A.U. in par t icu lar—and the d is
cuss ions o f merger tha t took p lace . Turner a lso ta l ks abou t re la t ions
with the Central Labor Body and with the Nat ional Federat ion in Toronto,

He analyses the reasons why Toronto became an important printing center

after the war and reminisces about Ken Brown who was president of the
Toronto loca l o f the A.L.A.

Turner was elected president of the Toronto local in 1959 when Ken
Borwn became International president. Then in 1961 Turner went on the

In te rna t iona l Counc i l and d iscusses the e lec t ion tha t l ed to th i s pos i

t ion, the whole Photoengraver-L i thographer merger s i tuat ion as seen
from the perspective of a Counci l member, the prospects for merger with
the Printing Pressmen, and the current tendency on the part of some

Canad ian un ions t o d i sa f f i l i a t e f r om the i r Un i t ed S ta tes i n te rna t i ona l
t i e s .

L



Turner: Roy Turner, born May 12, 1917 in the city of Toronto.
Interviewer: All right. And today is January . . .
Turner: 24th.
I n t e r v i e w e r : 2 4 , 1 9 7 4 . A l l r i g h t , j u s t a s a l i t t l e b i t o f b a c k g r o u n d ,

Roy, why don't you tel l us something about your school ing and your family back

ground and how you got into the labor movement in the f irst place.
Tu rne r : We l l , I was go ing t h rough h igh schoo l . My f i r s t ob jec t i ve was t o

be a teacher when I was going to high school, and this would be in the depression

yea rs o f t he 'SO ' s . Th ings we re ve r y d i f f i cu l t i n To ron to i n t hose yea rs—h igh

unemployment and. . . I guess my father happened to be in that area where he was
out of work. My brother- in- law, who was a l i thographer by t rade, spoke to me

about whether I wanted to get in to the t rade or not because i t d idnf t look too

b r igh t t o go on to . . . we l l , even to f i n i sh h igh schoo l . . , . o r go on to un i

ve rs i t y a t t ha t t ime . So wha t I d i d , I s t a r t ed i n t he t r ade and con t i nued w i t h
my high school educat ion at n ight school and did that , cont inued to go to high
school, and received most of my upper school papers by writing them at the end
of the term. I guess that went r ight up unt i l I went in to the Ai r Force J .n 1942.

Then the question came up again whether to go back to school or go back to
the t rade . And I was very fo r tuna te in tha t , w i th the papers I rece ived a t h igh

school and night school, I was able to go into the Air Force and be part of Air
Crew. Of course that was a real assist to my education because I went in as a

p i lo t o r nav iga to r and ac tua l l y g radua ted as a nav iga to r tak ing a l l t ha t course .

Then, a f te r I f i n i shed a tour o f opera t ions in Eng land , I was in te rv iewed
by the Air Commodore. Because of my marks, etc., in the training program, I was
asked i f I wou ld be an ins t ruc tor. To be an ins t ruc tor i t was necessary to go
to the A i r Force Co l lege in Eng land , wh ich I d id . O f course th is was a te r r i f i c

he lp aga in a long educa t iona l l i nes . Then a f te r g radua t ion I became an ins t ruc to r
and I was on that job for a wh i le , ins t ruc t ing the s tudents on the las t s tage

be fo re they wen t on to ope ra t i ons . So i t was a ve ry i n te res t i ng pa r t o f i t .
Then af ter I was on that for a whi le , I was appointed to another posi t ion

where I went to the squadrons to see that the students1 training was r ight up
to sc ra tch . I became a l i a i son o f f i ce r as we l l as an i ns t ruc to r. Then when the
war in Europe was over, we st i l l had our school going, but of course as far as

navigation it al l had to be changed because of the war going on in the Far East.
The stars and everything you used for navigation, you had to change it over, there.

So we were in the process of doing that when they transferred us. . . they were
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f^\ going to transfer us out to the west coast of Canada. When we were sailing
back on the Atlantic, V.J. day was declared so that the war was over. By the
time I got back home there was a letter from the president of the company that
I had worked for before signing up, telling me that on the day that I was dis
charged my job was waiting there. So with that. . . oh, and I should also add
that before going overseas in the early part, I was married so that it was a
matter of picking up the strings again. So I went back to the company that I
worked with before and. . .

Interviewer: What was that company, by the way?
Turner: Litho-Print Limited in Toronto.
Interviewer: Was it a very big company?
Turner: It was a fair size at that time, yes. It was what they called a

combination shop with the preparatory department, the pressroom, and then they
also had the other branches of the trade in there—the printing pressmen, the
typographical, and the bookbinders.

Interviewer: Uh-hm.
Turner: So then I worked there until the strike and lockout in '49. I

think it was either four or five companies were picked for the strike to start.
Then the Employers Association in Eastern Canada locked out the rest of the plants,
So we were locked out, and the strike continued for approximately six months.

Interviewer: Now, were you a member of the union at this time?
Turner: Oh, yes. I was a member of the union before I went overseas. l!d

been initiated in the early '4o's and was a member of the union. At that time
we retained our membership when we were in the service; so when I came back,
there wasn't any problem of reporting for work, and the membership. . . of course
we didn't pay dues or anything like that when we were in the service; but as soon
as we started to work again, we did*and all benefits were picked up again.

Interviewer.II: How long an apprenticeship period did you serve?
Turner: It's a four-year apprenticeship on the press, but I guess I should

tell you an interesting thing about that. The fact that when I went back, I was
an officer, a few ribbons and that sort of thing; and I had really not taken over
a press before I left. I was a feeder by trade. So when I came back, they put
me on a press; and I literally didn't serve any apprenticeship as far as the
money was concerned. They gave me the journeyman's rate right off the time.

^ But as far as the learning and all, I had to do that, but the fellows that were
there were very, very helpful with me. I was very fortunate.
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f7\ Interviewer: Was the fact that you were a returning veteran, was that
part of the reason they were very helpful, do you think? Or they would have
been helpful anyway?

Turner: I think a little bit of both. Because the fact that I had
worked there quite a long time as a feeder before and knew them all well and
had a good relationship with them and had been one of the early ones back
and that was just really coincidence because we weren't really coming back to
be discharged or anything. We were coming back to set up our navigational
school in Western Canada, but it so happened that the war ended on our way
back. Well, then we just stopped in Toronto and stayed there.

Interviewer: So you had the benefit of all the parades and the welcome
home and so on. . . (laughter)

Turner: Yeah.
Interviewer: Well, I guess we better describe this strike in 1949,(be

cause it was a pretty significant one) in some more detail. Your own situation
was that the company that you worked for was locked out?

Turner: Correct.
Interviewer: What kind of effect did this have on the membership?
Turner: Well, it had two effects as I see it. One effect, with the. . .

and I'm speaking primarily of the Toronto situation because I was more familiar
with it at the time. . . we had a number of older members that were sort of
"comme ci, comme ca,! about the strike issues and figured that the firms had been
so good to them over the years that they just couldn't bring themselves to going
on strike against because in a number of cases it was the only firm
they worked for. So that was the one effect that it had that was a benefit to
us because it made up the minds of all the older group that "Here, we've worked
for this firm all our lives and all he thinks about us is a number on the clock
and he's locking us out.11

And then of course, the other effect it had with the other part of the
membership was that it solidified them. We couldn't have done it at all—a lot
of the younger ones who might not have been too enthused about the issues at
that time.

Interviewerer: Now, one of the issues was an adequate pension program,
was it not?

Turner: Yes, pensions and welfare were really the issues.
Interviewer: So it surprises me a little bit that the older workers
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weren't more. . . I mean, that is often an issue which historically has

separated older workers from younger workers. But what I'm hearing you say
ing is that even some of the older workers weren't too excited about that as
an issue in terms of their loyalty to the company.

Turner: Yes,weLl, this is. . . yes, there are really two issues there.
Of course, pension is a different thing now. But at that time we would be one
of the few unions that would even be talking about pension in 1949. The other

part is something we were concerned about with the older members; that is,
would they really come out, would they really support a strike of that nature?

Interviewer: How did pensions get to be an issue if it was not terribly
common for it to be a negotiable issue? Did it have something to do with your

being in the CIO?
Turner: No. My recollections of that. . . the pension wasn't really the

issue in '49 because our pension didn't start until 1953. The real issue, as
I recall it, was with the welfare because we didn't have anything at all in the
contract as far as welfare was concerned. And, of course, at that time some
families were almost financially destroyed if they had a serious sickness or

operation, accident or whatever in the family. So this is the reason that the
emphasis was put on the welfare at that time.

Interviewer: Uh-hm.
Turner: And I would say that as far as the pension, it was a secondary

issue at that time because it didn't really come in until 1953.
Interviewer: I see. What kinds of welfare demands did you make?
Turner: Well, one of the things that we wanted at that time was some

form of weekly indemnity. If a member was off sick, naturally his income from
the company was stopped so abruptly that there wasn't a cent coming; and we
didn't have any form of welfare in the province at that time-, so he needed

something to keep the bread on the table when they were off sick.
Interviewer: What kind of support did you get from the other locals?

This was a long strike—six months—if I'm correct.
Turner: Oh, we had fantastic support from the locals in the States. I

can well remember checks coming in from the big locals like New York, then
Local One; it was a strong supporter. Checks of $10,000 and $15,000 at a
crack. Chicago was another big supporter. . . Philadelphia. Then, of course,
the border cities that knew us a litt le better, l ike Rochester, Buffalo,

Syracuse, etc. But I do still remember the big checks coming in from the
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large locals. And of course, it didn't just come to Toronto because we had
the five cities that were out with us at the time so it had to be distributed

amongst the others. We were in a fortunate position in that we had a fair
bit of money in our treasury, but it soon disappeared with the length of the
strike. So that initially the money had to be distributed to some of the
other locals.

Interviewer: Was this master contract with five cit ies, was that in
existence prior to the 1949 strike?

Turner : Yes .
Interviewer: When did that come into being and how did it come into being?
Turner: Well, I guess it would be A. W. Brown that would be the first

Canadian vice-president to be involved in that collective agreement for Eastern
Canada. The Canadian locals in Eastern Canada always had a fairly close re

lationship; and, as I understand it, the first contracts were really what you
would call it in this day and age memorandums. They weren't put up in a con-
tract the way we understand a contract today. But I couldn't give you the
exact date when they started, but we do have contracts in booklet form before
'49.

Interviewer II: The memorandum form, how. . . do you recall at all how

they evolved? How you got a memorandum issued by the employers?
Turner: It 's written out in longhand and signed. And of course, in

those early days the main thing would be the rate of pay, the hours, and that's
about it. They were so simple compared to the complex articles that you have
in a contract today that cover a hundred-and-one things.

Interviewer: Right. As a matter of fact, I've heard some people—and
this is kind of an aside and you might want to say something about it—but I've
heard a lot of rank and filers talk about the fact that it's, not possible for
them to understand the contract. They express a good bit of irritation and
frustration. Do you have that problem? Or do the rank-and-file people just

say, "Well, we have to hire experts, and we trust our leadership.11?
Turner: Well, we haven't really had that problem like some of the other

unions. I know something about the problem because we negotiate with American
Can and Continental Can, who have the Steelworkers contract, and that's this
thick /obviously indicating with his fingers^/, as you likely know, whereas
ours is only a few pages. We've tried to keep it to a minimum. And then we
have a very active shop delegates'—or shop stewards'—organization in Toronto
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f*%, and have had for quite some time so that we're able to keep them well-informed.
Then if an individual member in a shop or department has questions, he can call
the delegate; if he can't answer it, he'll either call us or put the question
through, and sometimes we'll give him a written answer on it if it's necessary.

Interviewer: You feel that through y^ur education program, plus the fact
that you have kept to a simpler contract, you don't have that problem, right?
Well, now, what about the kinds of settlement that you were finally able to
make in this Eastern Canadian strike? Were you successful in sort of catch
ing up to some of the patterns that had been established in American locals
with respect to fringe benefits, or were you still behind?

Turner: Oh, in '49 we would still be behind, primarily in the money.
Of course, it was a major breakthrough in getting the welfare plan into the
contract for the first time.

Interviewer: So what it did was, it set a pattern?
Turner: Right. And, of course, the other thing it did, it really helped

us with the pension shortly after this because the people were united and
realized that, if they were going to make these major breakthroughs in the
fringes, they'd have to be serious about it and they'd have to put a concerted
effort on. So that with acquiring the welfare in '49, I firmly believe that
helped eventually to get the pension shortly after.

Interviewer: Now, was this AIA (Amalgamated Lithographers of America)
convention in '53 in Toronto, was that the first convention that you attended,
Roy?

Turner: I really didn't attend it as a delegate. The times I'm telling
you about, I wasn't active in office in '49. As a matter of fact, the convention
in 1953 I still wasn't in office, but I was the chairman of the entertainment
committee. So that my wife and I had a good deal to do with the convention,
the social side of it.

Interviewer: Right. When did you then assume. . . you were elected vice
president of the local first, is that correct? Was that your first elected
position?

Turner: Yes.
Interviewer: Was that a full-time job?
Turner: No. That was part time. Ken Brown was president^and I was

elected vice president, but I still worked at the trade.
Interviewer: Now, was he elected president in 1953 or had he been
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president?
Turner: No. He wasn't president in '53. About 1954 would be. . . be

cause he was president for five years and then went to the International.
Interviewer: I see. So you were elected vice-president after he was

already president, that's what I'm trying to get at.
Turner : Yes. That 's r igh t .
Interviewer: And you were elected then in '56?
Turner: To the ful l- t ime job.
Interviewer: Oh, to the ful l - t ime job. I see.
Turner: I was working at the trade as vice-president for a year and

a half or two before that.
Interviewer: Oh, I see. What you're telling me is that Ken Brown made

the vice presidency a full-time position.
Turner : That 's r igh t .
Interviewer: Okay.
Interviewer II: What kind of things do you do as a vice-president, con

trasting between the full-time and the part-time vice president? What were
your responsibil i t ies then?

Turner: When the vice presidency was made a full-time position, he was
made the chairman of the organizing committee so that the vice president's

position at that time, when it was first full time, was to concentrate on the
organizing and trying to sign up some of the non-union shops that were de
veloping at that time.

Interviewer II: Was this just Toronto, or was this elsewhere . . . ?
Turner: No, just Toronto for our jurisdiction.
Interviewer: About how many members did you have?
Turner: When I went on full time?
Interviewer: Uh-huh.
Turner: 850. I just happen to know that one. (laughter)
Interviewer: 850.
Turner: Because I kept track of the organizing, I knew I had to justify

my position.
Interviewer: So you knew it had to be at least 851 come next year! I

( laughter)
Turner: Yeah.
Interviewer II: Do you remember what kind of things you were confronted
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with when you went out to organize? Were people willing to join if they knew
about i t or was i t a strong sel l that you had to. . . . . ?

Turner: I would say that at that time, initially it was easier because
we were in a fortunate position. We'd had a number of contracts signed since
the strike so that we had welfare, we had pension, we had the statutory holi

days, enlarging the number, and we were working fewer hours than industry in
general. Most of the shops were still family affairs at that time, and I
actually was successful in organizing and signing some contracts at that
time by going through the front door. You can't very well do that today.

And of course, the second part was that most of our negotiations were
with the owners, which made a tremendous difference. I can remember one owner:
after we had everything straightened away and had signed the contract, he wanted
to offer me a job. I said, "I got a full-time job. What kind of a job could

you give me, anyway?" And he says, "Well, I thought I had my members sold on
the idea that we were going to have an open shop here. But you've come along
and sold them on the union. I kind of like your approach. I think if you can
sell unionism to my members, you can sell lithography for me." (laughter)

Interviewer: He was probably right! You probably could have!

Well, obviously one of the problems that we see here in the States in this
very period of time that you're talking about is the whole business of the
National Federation attempting to put pressure on the Amalgamated to sign a

no-raiding pledge or make some kind of agreement with the ITU and Printing
Pressmen. And I think it would be useful if you would talk about how that

problem manifested itself in Toronto. How serious were the wars that you had?
Turner: Yes, well, actually, we were in a fortunate position in Toronto,

and this bit that I'm going to tell you goes back to when Ken was president in
Toronto and his father, A. W. Brown, was vice-president. Another vice-presi
dent that's here—well, he's not here right now because of sickness—but Burt

Groves, he was the president of the Bookbinders in Toronto. . . .
Interv iewer: Grove?
Turner: Burt Groves. Yes. We actually had meetings in Toronto with five

or six unions including the Printing Pressmen and the Typographical, Photoen

gravers, Bookbinders, and ouselves, and we were talking about an association
in Toronto. We really didn't have a name for it because we knew we would get
some static from the International—not our own—but from the ITU and the •
IPP&AU. But nevertheless, we had a number of meetings and as a result of those
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f*^ meetings, we had a good relationship vith the other locals. I know that as
far as the Printing Pressmen and ourselves because they were just starting
to. . . some of their shops were putting in offset at the time. So we made
an agreement with them that those shops that they had the contract in>we
wouldn't interfere if that's the way they were going to get into offset;
but if it's another situation where it was an open shop and it was litho
graphy, that would be sort of open game, and we would certainly have the
advantage then. That was one of the reasons we had the second full-time man
put on at that time. So we really didn't have the history that they've had
in some cities where there've been bitter struggles over the jurisdiction.

Interviewer: What about Photengravers? Were there very many Photoen
gravers in Toronto?

Turner: Yes, it was always a fairly active local.
Interviewer: Were they involved in these discussions that you're de

scribing?
Turner: Yes.
Interviewer: They were too?
Turner: Yes.
Interviewer: Okay. Well, I think it would be interesting to talk a

little bit further about this in the sense that you sort of alluded to the
fact that you had this local cooperation. You really almost had a local. . .
the concept of merger.

Turner: Merger. . . oh, yes, that's the way it was at that time.
Interviewer: And yet you didn't feel you could get anywhere because the

Internationals would sabotage this.
Turner: Well, we had. . . not our own Internationals because A. W. Brown

was sitting in, who was an International Canadian vice-president at that time.
But we knew that it was a delicate, ticklish situation with the ITU and the
IPP&AU. As a matter of fact, after we had a number of meetings, they re
ceived a directive from their International offices to stop meeting on this
until it was approved by the International.

And then, of course, the second thing was the politics—or the two party
system—in the ITU. The chap who was president in Toronto, he was of the
other party and of course there was always a little bit of friction between

; the Toronto ITU and the International office. As a matter of fact, so much
so that when the ITU strike finally took place, that was one of the very
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(~^. serious situations because they had approved on two or three occasions a
settlement that was acceptable to the Toronto papers, to the members, to
their executive; and then the International president turned it down.

Interviewer: I wonder if I could ask you to be a little bit philosophi
cal at this point. We always. . . when we teach trade union administration
and when we talk about trade union structure, the ITU is always brought up
as an example of being an extremely democratic union because of this structure
of opposition parties to the encumbent. And I wonder if you could say some
thing about how you observed this in Toronto. Do you feel that this structure
does more likely preserve some kind of local autonomy or democratic procedures,
or do you feel it doesn't really have that much effect?

Turner: No, I myself, I guess it was because I was so close to Bob
McCormack, who was the president of the Toronto ITU. I felt it really worked
the other way, rather than being democratic. Because we were all. . . . being
close to this, we were so shocked when we figured, "Oh, it's coming along
nicely now. They've got something that's acceptable to members;" because after
all they're the ones that should decide. And then to have the International
office put a veto on it and have it go back, it seemed to me to be acting the
exact opposite to what a truly democratic system should. And then, of course,
I also knew that there was basic friction in there because of. . . . one was
one party and the other was the other party.

Interviewer: Right. So the AIA has always had a strong tradition of
local autonomy, but maybe local autonomy is not necessarily and always the
same thing as democracy. It may be, for example, that the Toronto locals were
out of step with the rest of the ITU in terms of talking about merger. I don't
know, but I would be interested to know if you have any sense of whether that
was in fact true or whether this was really the International coming in and
exercising its muscle on the locals. In other words, was the International
representing some kind of democratic sentiment in their own union that this
should not be allowed to take place in this spot.

Turner: Oh, I think that's the key because we know, from our discussions
with the ITU, they've had hard-line policies that haven't changed for a hundred
years. "We're the first union in the graphic arts, so you have to do it our
way." And what really happened is really a disaster as a result of that strike.
The ITU isn't even in the paper in Toronto. They lost the strike, and they
lost all those positions; and along with losing the positions for the ITU, the
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Cfaj mailers lost their positions as well. As a matter of fact, the mailers suf
fered more in that strike than the craftsmen, that is7the ITU craftsmen-be-
cause of the fact that they were able eventually to go to other jobs; but
the mailers just didn't have another place to go. So they were the ones who
really lost out.

And knowing full well as far as the members in it. . . because we
worked with them in the different shops. We knew that basically they thought
the same as we did about unionism. And we used to help them out on commer
cial. . . small '.shops where there would be a strike. Yet this is the thing
that we were doing that the International should have been doing at that
time—all getting together. And I think they realized that it was going too
wel l , ( laughter)

Interviewer: And they blew the whistle!!
Turner: Right.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Interviewer II: So A. W. Brown at that time, an International repre

s e n t a t i v e , . . .
Turner: Vice president.
Interviewer II: . . . vice president, participated?
Turner: Oh, sure. He was in the meetings.
Interviewer: What kind of feedback did you get from the Canadian Labor

Congress on these merger discussions?
Turner: Well, we didn't really have anything official, but the CLC has

always encouraged mergers. So that if there had been anything official coming
out from their office, it would have been encouraging.

Interviewer: Now I think when you talked with Greg, you mentioned that
this cooperation with other local unions, which was fairly unique in Toronto,
made for good relations with the industry. I wonder if you could say a little
bit about the relationships with the industry and how it may have changed over
time as they became increasingly automated and not family-owned kinds of shops.

Turner: Well, at that time in the various shops there were definite
jurisdictional lines between the ITU, the IPP&AU, our own, and Bookbinders.
But then. . .

Interviewer: What about the Photoengravers? Were there definite juris
dictional lines there too?

Turner: Yes, but I wasn't working in a shop where the Photoengravers
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(fa\ were so I can't speak on it. We did have a few trade shops with Photo
engravers in, but there wasn't ever any jurisdictional problem with them be
cause it was. . . . it's just recently that some of the photoengraving shops
have put in offset equipment. At that time a photoengraver either worked
for the rotoengraver or the newspaper or commercial letterpress, so there
wasn't any problem. And we've never had a jurisdictional problem with the
Photoengravers in Toronto because they gradually worked into the offset, and
if they've. . . one shop in particular. . . they have the contract, and it's
most of our members that are in there, meaning the Lithograph members who are
in there doing the offset work.

Interviewer II: So the industry conditions during this time when you
were having cooperative relations with the other locals in Toronto were
favorable?

Turner: Yes.
Interviewer II: What was the nature of the favorable relationship?

Were there schools set up at that time or. . . how would you characterize the
relationship more specifically?

Turner: No. There would be. . . before the schools were set up. . .1
would think the time of those meetings would be about 1957, early '58. Ken
was still president, and I had been in the office a little while. And the
employers really didn't object to language in the contract at that time that
would be specifically directed to lithography or the printing trades. And it
wasn't until after that that the Printing Pressmen started asking for language
that would also cover lithography and the same thing with the ITU. So that
as far as the negotiating at that time, it was a straightforward procedure
for your own craft.

Then, of course, the jurisdictional lines started to disappear, and that's
when the Printing Pressmen came after the presses and the ITU put in the
language to try and get some of the preparatory department. So that there
wasn't really a problem with the other unions or with the employers at that
time. That came along at a little later date and mainly as directives from
their Internationals because, particularly with the ITU, they would devise a
new clause and they would insist that their locals put it into the contracts.
And in some cases it wasn't always an advantage for them to do that.

Interviewer: But what I hear you saying is that the nature of the in
dustry is changing in that you no longer have these small shops in which an
owner-worker, kind of, I mean who was actually there, who... . pretty clearly
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in his own mind was doing a lithographic business or he was doing a. . .

Turner : Pr int ing business. . .
Interviewer: Yes, but that this began to change, that the printing be

came. . . all kinds of things began to appear in one shop under one roof.
Turner: Uh-hm. Well, what happened in a number of the. . . and this

could be large shops, too. . . where they had run printing presses for years
and years and no change there, the typographical men would have been setting
the type by hand. Well, then, their business finally started to disappear
because it became so expensive to do it that way. The lithographing shops
were putting in modern equipment with presses that would run three, four,

maybe five times as fast. So a lot of those jobs in the printing industry
for the printing pressmen gradually became obsolete. And they just couldn't
afford to run those presses. So what would happen in a printshop, if they
didn't have a lithographic unit, they would buy a lithographic press and put
it in that print department. And then what would happen over a period of

years, that could develop from a print shop into a lithographic house. And
that was about the start of it in Toronto.

Interviewer: Let me ask you a question about the trade or the craft
itself. What is involved for a man who has been operating a printing press
to move over to offset in terms of the change in skills and how long it takes
him to be able to do this if he is asked by management to do this?

Turner: Well, we. . . what the Printing Pressmen's Union did at that

time, that's when they opened their school in Tennessee; and they would send
someone down there for a crash course. But this wasn't really successful be
cause he wasn't brought up to the problem of lithography where you have to
balance oil and water. He was just trained to handle the inks which were

greasy and the relief plates and relief type, so he didn't have to worry about
water at all. So this was the biggest change. I worked in a few shops where

they tried to do it, and what we. . .
Interviewer: Where they tried to do what? To get the printing pressmen

to do. . .
Turner: Run offset .
Interv iewer: Run offset . Uh-hm.
Turner: And some of them were able to make the change, if they were young

and they. . . over and above the crash course they got at Tennessee, if they
went to, . . . and at that time the technical schools in Toronto were putting
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^ in £ma l l o f f se t p resses . They cou ld l ea rn to con t ro l t he p rob lem o f the ba l
ance between oil and water. What we did in our local, we had some of the
machines. We would insist that they become a feeder, that they spend some time
on the feeder, so that they could gradually pick it up and weren't all of a
sudden confronted with the responsibility of a press and not know what to ex

pect because the presses, generally speaking, were so much faster than what
they had been running, too, which was a problem because you get an older man
who has worked on a press for many years and its clunking along like this, and
then all of a sudden, he's on a press that's going 6000. Well, it affects his
insides.

Interviewer: Right. He has to be completely differently paced.
Turner: Yeah. And what would happen with some of them, that tremendous

change overnight would bring on a sickness or nervousness or something like
that because they automatically would think they had to go that fast, after

watching the other for years.
Interviewer: Well, I wonder if maybe this is the place to talk about your

relationships with the labor movement in Toronto, that is, with the Central Labor
Body and with the National Federation. I think you mentioned before that there
was some pressure at the time you withdrew from the CIO in Canada you had to go
out of the Canadian Labor Congress as well. I wondered if you were aware of

why those changes took place? Why would it make any difference?
Turner: I was somewhat aware, but the part that I can recall. . . . when

the International office in the states withdrew, Ken Brown appeared before the
Executive Board of the CLC. I was with him and Dick Clarke was with him and a
few other of the presidents. We were summoned there because of the charges of
the Printing Pressmen in the States. As I recall, that was one of the main
reasons for withdrawing. They had advised us, because we had some problems,

particularly out in Western Canada, with the Printing Pressmen, that we would
just have to abide by the regulations and if we didn't change, we'd just have
to withdraw from the CLC.

Interviewer: So they held you to the no-raiding concept. . . .
Turner : Yes .
Interviewer: . . . as i t was art iculated south of the border.
Turner : Yes .
Interviewer: Now, Greg /interviewer IlJ7 has said that you noted a dif

ference between the United States and Canada with regard to members opening a
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( T ^ s h o p a n d r e t a i n i n g t h e i r m e m b e r s h i p a n d t h e f a c t t h a t n e w f i r m s o f t e n a t t e m p t
to be more compet i t i ve by be ing non-un ion. Th is is obv ious ly a growing th ing

that begins to take place in the '60 's and not in the '50 's when there was a

t r e m e n d o u s g r o w t h i n l i t h o g r a p h i c s h o p s . I s t h a t r i g h t ?
Tu rne r : No . Some o f t he shops we re opened i n t he f 50 ' s . I cou ld t e l l

you bet ter th is way: Af ter the war, (and I was on the verge of do ing i t mysel f
because I had an offer), when the fel lows came back from the service and they
worked for a l i t t le whi le , they had some k ind of a gratu i ty in some cases, de

pending on how long they had been in. And this was in some cases a fair ly
large sum that they received so that i f they were for tunate l ike I was and went

r ight back to a job and then had th is money, i t was fa i r ly easy for them to go
in to bus iness . So tha t ac tua l ly some o f them went in to bus iness a t tha t t ime
a n d s o m e i n t h e ' 5 0 ' s . I t w a s n ' t r e a l l y. . . i t w a s n ' t a b i g c h a n g e i n t h e
'60fs as far as going into business. But in Toronto we have had over theX^f^^f iS
and I guess there hasn't been a year go by that we haven't had somebody go

in to bus i ness .

But the o ther th ing tha t I 'd l i ke to ment ion is tha t we 've a lways had a

f a i r l y g o o d b e n e f i t p l a n i n To r o n t o . A s a m a t t e r o f f a c t , w e s t a r t e d . . . w e
st i l l have our own pension which we star ted in 1944. So th is is one of the

o ther reasons tha t the fe l lows in Toron to don ' t d rop the un ion i f they go in to

management or i f they're owning their own business because I guess we're sort
of in a unique posit ion. We must be paying four former owners a pension,

( l augh te r ) Bu t t h i s i s a ve ry sma l l pens ion ; we s ta r ted then pu t t i ng 25 cen ts
a week into i t , but over the years i t has grown so that I guess we have close
t o t w o m i l l i o n d o l l a r s i n i t n o w. B u t t h a t , p l u s t h e a t t i t u d e w e h a d t o w a r d

the un ion in Toron to , has a lways kept the fe l lows together.
One of the chaps now, just as an example, that owns Graphic Litho-Plate—

I guess i t w i l l be deve lop ing in to one o f the la rges t t rade shops in Toron to—
before Ken was active or before I was active and before he owned the business,
the three of us used to go out soc ia l ly and, o f course, we s t i l l see one another.

But he s tar ted h is bus iness, developed i t in to rea l ly a go ing concern now, and
he's sti l l a member and pays his dues every week.

I n t e r v i e w e r : I t ' s s o r t o f a u n i q u e s i t u a t i o n i n t h e l a b o r m o v e m e n t .

Tu r n e r : I t i s v e r y u n i q u e , y e s . B e c a u s e t h e o t h e r t h i n g t h a t ' s a l s o

i h a p p e n e d . . . o f c o u r s e w i t h t h e s e n e g o t i a t i o n s i n E a s t e r n C a n a d a , w e h a v e o n e

chap on there now that 's president of another trade shop and he's st i l l a member
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o f ours and he s i t s ac ross the tab le f rom us in nego t ia t ions . Tha t ' s a un ique
s i t u a t i o n .

I n t e r v i e w e r : H o w d o e s i t a f f e c t n e g o t i a t i o n s , d o y o u t h i n k ?
Tu r n e r : I t d o e s n ' t r e a l l y a f f e c t t h e m .
I n t e r v i e w e r : H e ' s j u s t a s t o u g h ?
Tu r n e r : S u r e .

I n te rv i ewer : I s he more t ough?
Turner : No, I don ' t th ink so . He cou ld even come to our meet ings i f he

w a n t e d , b u t h e w o u l d n ' t d o t h a t . H e j u s t a c t s s t r i c t l y a s a n e m p l o y e r. A n o t h e r
example I can give you is the fact that wi th our school—ours is a very success
fu l s choo l and t ha t f i r s t chap t ha t I was t e l l i ng you abou t , h i s execu t i ve v i ce -

president is a lso a member of ours. He and I are co-chairmen of the school , but
i f he th inks tha t we a re mov ing a l i t t l e too fa r o f f base o r we ' re no t ac t ing
the way we should as far as some of the funds or something, he won't hesitate

to t e l l me , even though he ' s s t i l l a member o f t he un ion . So i t r ea l l y doesn ' t
affect them, when*the chips are down, as far as business is concerned.

I n t e r v i e w e r I I : We r e t h e r e a n y l a r g e f i r m s , v e r y b i g f i r m s , i n To r o n t o a t
tha t t ime?

T u r n e r : Ye s .

I n t e r v i e w e r I I : D i d t h e y h a v e a d i f f e r e n t r e l a t i o n s h i p t h a n t h e u n i o n h a d
with a lot of these smal ler f i rms that were former union members? Were there

d i f f e r e n c e s w i t h . . .

Turner : I wou ld say tha t no t too long a f te r the war our b igges t f i rm was

Rolph, Clark &: Stone, and we would have at one time pretty close to 150 members
in there. But they were members of the Employers Associat ion, and we didn' t

mee t t hem ind i v i dua l l y, o f cou rse , on nego t i a t i ons . We j us t me t t he nego t i a t i ng
commit tee. . .

I n t e r v i e w e r : T h e r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s o f t h e E m p l o y e r s A s s o c i a t i o n . . .
Turner: Yeah. We had more contact wi th the smal ler companies that were

not members of the Employers Association because, after we signed the master

contract, then we would go and sign an independent contract with the smaller ones,
So that we had the occasion then to go in and talk to the owners of the small

companies. So that's the reason we had more contact with the smaller company

management than we d id w i th the b ig compan ies . And tha t ' s s t i l l the case . Jus t
recently two employers' groups merged J.n Toronto, and the old one, the Canadian

L i thographers Assoc ia t i on , merged w i th the Counc i l o f P r in t i ng Indus t r i es , and
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(. they actually picked up the new name and dropped the old one.
Interviewer: What was happening in Toronto to make Toronto become one of

the great printing centers of the world? I mean, you always used to think of
Boston and New York and London. Then all of a sudden, somewhere here after the
war you began to have to think of Toronto as being one of the great printing
centers of the world too. And I wonder, you know, what were the factors that
were bringing this about?

Turner: Well, I guess there would be two or three factors. One fact, of

course, is that Toronto is on Lake Ontario and the Toronto harbor now, with the
development of the Seaway, the ocean boats can come right into Toronto, where
before the St. Lawrence Seaway was built they couldn't get £nto the Great Lakes
so that materials can be brought right into Toronto on the boats. Plus the fact
that Toronto is so central to all of Canada and so close to a number of areas in
the states. Then the development of industry in Toronto really mushroomed and
still is, as a matter of fact. There are several stories going around, even

though Montreal is sti l l sl ightly larger than Toronto, that Toronto wil l be the
largest city in Canada before very long. The third thing, it has a favorable
climate. Even though we're in Canada, we're further south than a number of
American cities when you look on the map, you know. Then, of course, the fact
that we have water all around us (they call us the Banana Belt of Canada) it has

quite an effect on. . .
Interviewer: So, it wasn't that the printing industry was uniqueJ

what you're trying to tell me is that everything in Toronto was exploding.
Tu rne r : Yes .
Interviewer: Put I think printing must have been ahead of some of these

other things, wasn't i t?
Turner: Well, yes, they had the agencies there, the advertising agencies

in Toronto. Of course, there's still a good number of them in Montreal, but I
think the other thing that helped was that the automotive industry was close to
Toronto. It's just in recent years that General Motors put a plant in Montreal.
Before and still in Oshawa, which is about forty miles east—it's a big General
Motors town—practically the whole town relies on GM. Then you go the other way
.... you had to go all the way to Windsor at one time for Chrysler and Ford.
Then the Ford people moved a tremendous, big—well, they built it from scratch—

V a tremendous big operat ion just twenty or twenty-f ive mi les f rom Toronto on the
other side. And the automotive industry alone gave so much work to the litho-
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(7*% graphing and printing trades that that was a shot in the arm.
Interviewer: Yes. Right, r ight.
Turner: And then I would think that the final thing that some of the head

offices were moved to Toronto after the separatist problem in Quebec. That's
more recent, that. . . but all those things, you know, they're all helping be
cause the printing industry in Toronto is still growing; the number of new
presses and that is surprising.

Interviewer: What kind of a local union president was Ken Brown? One of
the things that is obvious is that, in terms of some of these serious jurisdic
tional disputes that you had in other places, he didn't go through that in his
formative learning years. But I wondered if you could say something about what
kind of innovations he was making? What kind of thinking, you know? Not the
Ken Brown you know now, but the Ken Brown you knew then, a much younger person.

Turner: Well, I think the main change that came about after he became
president is the fact that he was so much younger than any other president that
we had. . .

Interviewer: Local union president?
Turner: Local union president, yes. . . that he was interested in changes

and interested in developing Toronto more along the lines of some of the better
American locals because he had been on the International Council for a number of
years, had the advice of his father who had traveled back and forth for many
years; and they knew the weaknesses that you can fall into, but they also knew
the better points that, if they could be instituted in Toronto, they would cer
tainly make us one of the stronger locals. And so that we moved along in that
direction.

I guess we even put more emphasis on the fringe benefits and on the bene
fits of the members because we didn't actually start the school until after Ken
left, but we had been trying. We had a more difficult time in Toronto and
Eastern Canada with the school than some of the areas in the states would have.
So it wasn't just a matter of it happening when I became president because a lot
of work had gone into it beforehand.

And then Ken, I would say, added a fair bit of expertise to the office in
that he introduced diplomacy and a higher grade of negotiating so that you just
didn't go in with a warm feeling in the pit of your stomach and say, "I have to

t have this or my members have to have that." He was the type of person who would
do some homework and have some facts and figures. Of course, Ken was in the
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fO) service too, and I think that had a bearing on the way he operated when he
became president. Then, of course, the overlying thing is the fact that he
had such a strong training right at home with his father. . .

Interviewer: Right at the breakfast table!
Turner: Yeah. . . with his father being president of the Toronto local

and then being International/president for twenty years.
Interviewer: Well in '59, when Ken went to New York, you then became

the president of the Toronto local, is that correct?
Turner: Yes, well, what happened there and I remember those dates well

... in April of '59 Ken was approached, and our local agreed to give him a
six months' leave of absence. And in that time I was not "elected", but

"acting" president, until October of '59. Then at the Portland convention,
Ken was nominated unanimously, without any opposition, to the presidency. So
we had an election then, and I was elected president at that time.

Interviewer: Well, I wonder if you could say something about the events
that led up to your running for the International Council. Am I correct, you
went on the International Council in '61? Is that right?

Turner: Yes, I think that's when I was elected.
Interviewer: And you had opposition for that office; you ran against. . .
Turner: Bob Edison.
Interviewer: Bob Edison, who was the incumbent, right?
Turner: Uh-hm.
Interviewer: Well, I wonder if you could say something about what caused

you to decide to run against the incumbent. What were some of the issues in
that elect ion?

Turner: Well, at the convention in Portland, of course, that was the first
time that Ken didn't run as a councilor, with being the assistant to the presi

dent, so Bob Edison, president of Montreal, ran. No, excuse me, that's not
correct! It was first of all our vice president from Toronto, Frank Powell,
who ran at that time. And he did it without any consultation of our executive
board or members.

Interviewer: He just popped up at the convention and did it.
Turner: He. . . yeah. . . he let his name stand. Now, he likely wasn't

even at the convention, but I'm pretty sure it was London local that nominated
him. And so his name stood. And, of course, it became a problem because of
our rule in Toronto that a president and vice president couldn't be away at
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f~> the same time. So before the term was out, he resigned. And then Bob Edison,
they had an interim where he was appointed, I forget. . . but anyway Bob Edison
became the International Counciltor.

Interviewer: Appointed by whom?
Turner: Well, it may have been by Ken, because of the short term for

Frank Powell's term. Well, anyway. . .
Interviewer: In other words, . . now let me get myself clear. What hap

pened was you realized you had a problem because both Powell and Ken could not
be away at the same time. . .

Turner: Powell and me!
Interviewer: Powell and you could not be away at the same time.
Turner : Yeah. So. . .
Interviewer: So Ken had to appoint somebody. . .
Turner: No. Frank Powell resigned from the job and then. . . there may

have even been an election. I'm not that clear on that particular point at
this time. But anyway, in any event, it was Bob Edison who became the Interna
t ional Counci lor.

Interviewer: All r ight. And then in '6| you ran against him?
Turner : Yes , r igh t .
Interviewer: Right? Okay. Well, that's what I wanted to ask you, basically.

What were the events that led up to your deciding to try for the Council.
Turner: I think those dates are. . . I was on the International Council

in '63, so I must have been elected in '61. That was the convention in Miami.
Interviewer: You were elected at the convention in. . . I mean. . .
Turner: Well, I was nominated and elected after. . .
I n t e r v i e w e r : . . . a t M i a m i , r i g h t .
Turner: Yeah. Because I was on the International Council at the conr

vention in '63.
Interviewer: Al l r ight , that makes i t a l i t t le di fferent because then

there's less period of time between '59 and '61. It's the next time you could
have run, really. . .

Turner : R igh t

(END OF SIDE ONE)

Interviewer: Okay. Well, we were talking about what led up to your de
cision to run for the Council. And we established that there was really a very
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short period of time between the Portland Convention when Ken was nominated
and the next one in Miami where you were nominated to the Council. But Bob
Edison decided to run for Council, too, apparently. Okay. So what were
the issues in the election? Were they just the issues as to which man could
do the better job, or were there some substantive issues with respect to con
tracts or negotiations or education or anything of that sort?

Turner: There weren't any real main issues that I can remember other
than. . . the reason I didn't run in Portland, of course, was that I knew
that if Ken was elected International president, then I would be running for
the presidency in Toronto. And I had been acting president for such a short
time I felt that I needed to concentrate on that for a while, so that's the
reason I didn't run out there. And then when the nominations were open in

Miami, it was a matter of support from our delegates. They wanted me to run,
feeling that we were the largest local in Canada and that we should be repre
sented. But no major issues; it was just a matter of support from our own

delegates. They wanted to nominate me.
And then, of course, I had the support of our own local, too, because

they were familiar with the president being away part of the time and it wasn't
a case of having to educate them on leaving the local. The local then wasn't
unattended because the second man was in the office and there wasn't really
that problem.

Interviewer: Who was that second man, by the way?
Turner: Frank Powell.
Interv iewer: Frank Powel l . Okay.
Turner: During the six-months' leave of absence of Ken, he came in on

a six-month basis. Then he was elected, and so was I when Ken was nominated
for the Internat ional presidency.

Interviewer: I wonder if you could discuss then. . . You've been on the
Council for almost eleven years, close to thirteen years, so you've been in a
real position to see the whole question of merger with both the Photoengravers
and the Bookbinders arise and be dealt with and successfully concluded. I
wonder if you could say something about what your feelings were about merger
and what some of the difficulties were, what some of the hang-ups were as you
watched this progressing. And also, of course, if you will, the various abor
tive attempts that were made with the Pressmen.

Turner: Well, I think, going back to the first merger discussions that
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H\ were held, I'm not able to speak authoritatively on it because I was never on
one of those committees that just dealt with the requests that were given. I
think the biggest disappointment to us was that, when we first started to talk
with the ITU, a number of meetings were held before we realized that they didn't
want to really merge. They would be agreeable to join the two organizations
together, but as far as they were concerned, it was a take-over for the ITU
and not a merger like we understood it. So that fell by the wayside fairly
quickly.

As far as the Photoengravers is concerned, it, to most of us, just seemed
to be a natural merger because even the skills are similar in the preparatory
department. And we had gotten along so well in the majority of the cities, so
that wasn't a problem either. And our contracts were similar so that it's un
fortunate that it didn't start there in the first place because in some of our
meetings, looking back over old minutes, merger had been talked about in Toronto
with the Photoengravers long before it came about on the International level.

4

I think the other big disappointment is that we were never able to merge
with the Printing Pressmen. I still feel that way; that's really one of the
drawbacks because with our own members in the shops, they've worked so closely
with the Printing Pressmen over the years and with the two branches coming so
close together that. . . especially in some of the cities where they've had
bitter disputes and thousands of dollars have been spent on law suits and that
sort of thing.

Interviewer: How did the Printing Pressmen in Toronto feel about this?
Do they communicate to you how they feel? Do they let you know how they feel?
At the time these discussions were going forward, for example, did you have
contacts with local union presidents in Toronto?

Turner: Oh, yes. We've had a fairly close relationship. They were very
much in favor of it because, generally speaking, the Printing Pressmen have
lost so many members out of their commercial shops where the old printing
presses have just gone out of existence. So that we actually have Printing
Pressmen in Toronto that would still like to join our. . . but we know that,
in one shop in particular, if we started on it, it would only open up a big
jurisdictional problem. So that we're sort of holding them at arm's length,
hoping and hoping that the next merger will be with the Printing Pressmen.

v . Interviewer: In other words, they would l ike to sign cards to be repre
sented by GAIU at this point?
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f ~ \ T u r n e r : R i g h t .
Interviewer: That's how strongly they feel about it.
Turner: Right. Yes.
Interviewer II: What advantages would they have in leaving the Printing

Pressmen and joining GAIU? What are the differences now between the two?
Turner: Well, the main thing that they would have would be job opportu

nities. There are so few opportunities in Toronto for Printing Pressmen who
are running lithographic presses, just the odd job here and there. And usually
the presses that are put in these plants are small presses so that they're
limited financially on the level that they can reach. Whereas if they were in
our union, they would be able to move up onto larger presses, multi-colored
presses, and they. . . see, we have pretty close to 2000 members in our local,
and we would have something like about 85 contracts. So that the limitations
are expanded for them if they were a member of ours. And with our system, if
a man wants a change of job, he writes a letter into our office; and we keep
that on file. If a job comes in that we don't have a man out of work for it,
then we go to the letters and then he would be put in touch for an interview
for that particular job.

Interviewer: Right.
Interviewer II: What was your general feeling about the mergers at the

time? You were, I take it, favorable.
Turner: Oh, yes.
Interviewer II: Were there people in your local or in Toronto that were

not in favor of merger with the Photoengravers and then the merger with the
Bookbinders?

Turner: No, I can't say there was any concerted effort in Toronto try
ing to oppose the merger because of our good relationship with both the Photo
engravers and the Bookbinders. There is still a little bit of feeling, and
I've heard about it recently in connection with the Bookbinders, but not with
the Photoengravers, because we will have to change a lot of our rules and regu
lations with merging with the Bookbinders because we're primarily an all-male
local. And naturally some of them, they voiced it to me, "How are we going to
make changes in so-and-so if we merge with the Bookbinders?" But it's just a
matter of education and getting used to it.

; In terv iewer: Wel l , what were the problems then wi th the Internat ional as
you saw it from Toronto? You had no problems locally, but there were certain
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f*~V problems with merging with the Photoengravers on a national level—Local #1
in New York, that Montreal merger convention, and things of that nature. Can

you comment on that for us briefly?
Turner: Oh, yes. Well, we had a problem in Toronto. That's one of

the reasons we're not merged, because Les Young was part of that group. Although

they said they were in favor of merger and voted in favor of merger, they didn't
really work at merger, because we met in Toronto on two different occasions.
And when I say "met", this is really a series of meetings. And Les Young was
the secretary-treasurer of 35P in Toronto, and they were literally going through
the motions, but we weren't getting any closer to merger.

Interviewer: Why was that? Was it a question of the merger of the jobs
or what?

Turner: We really don't know why they were opposed to merger, but there
was a group of them. There was Charlie Thomson of Cleveland, and Norm Park of

Detroit, and Les Young, and we know that they were holding meetings unofficially.
Whether it was a matter of the jobs or whether they were just opposed to merger,
it finally came to us as a cold reality that we would not be merged in Toronto
until Les Young retired. And that's the case in some of the other cities. Les
retired last summer, and we've had the merger meetings, not only with 35P, but
with the Bookbinders; and the whole tone is so different now. They are really
anxious to merge and are going out of their way to supply us with information
that we just couldn't get before. So that would be the only problem that we've
had with the merger that I can recall in Toronto.

Interviewer: Well, I know you don't know why he felt that way, specifi

cally, but if he was the secretary-treasurer of 35P, would he have emerged as
the secretary-treasurer of the merged local? Could that have been kind of part
of the problem? That he might have had to surrender his office?

Turner: It may have been, because we—that is, the Lithographic
section—were so much larger, because their membership has been shrinking, and
I believe at the present time they're down to about 525 and we're around the

1900 mark. So that it was agreed that, if we merged, I'd be president of the
merged organization, so it was possibly one of the reasons. But this never
really came out in the clear.

Interviewer: Now in some locals I know the secretary-treasurer is

i rea l l y the more impor tan t job , and the p res iden t i s k ind o f the f i gu rehead .
Is that the case here?
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Turner : Wel l , tha t 's the case in a number o f the Photoengrav ing loca ls .
The pres ident takes the job as a sor t o f rout ine and obl igat ion that he 's re

qu i r ed t o do . He ' l l ho l d i t . . . l i ke i n To ron to , s i nce t hey ' ve been merged ,
I guess they've had six presidents. And each one would only hold i t for a

term or maybe two, but the secretary-treasurer stays on in the job, and the
same thing has gone on in Montreal. Gasdon Dorai, who's on the council now,
since Les Young lef t , he's been secretary-treasurer for many, many years.

The same thing I can remember many presidents down there that they work at

the t rade and they run the meet ings, but as far as the local , the secretary-
t reasurer runs the loca l because he 's a fu l l - t ime man in the o f f ice .

I n t e r v i e w e r : I t ' s a k i n d o f t y p i c a l , I t h i n k , A F o f L p a t t e r n . I w a n t e d
to ask you about the presence or absence of act iv i ty on the part of the Al l ied

Pr in t ing Trades.
Tu rne r : I 'm no t rea l l y a good one to t a l k t o abou t t he A l l i ed P r i n t i ng

Trades because in ou r l oca l—and I 'm s t i l l t r y ing to f i gh t i t—we haven ' t had
too much success wi th the A l l ied Pr in t ing Trades. I a t tended severa l o f the

meetings at the start, and we were all worked up and figured that we could do
something about it and then found that any shop that we suggested, there was

always some reason that we couldn' t get the Al l ied label in. So af ter a number
o f f r us t ra t i ons we i n i t i a l l y had a be t t e r l i s t o f l abe l shops than they had ,
so we f igured, well , we have so many other things to do, let 's not beat our

h e a d a g a i n s t t h e w a l l o n t h i s A l l i e d . A n d o f c o u r s e , a t t h a t t i m e C h i c a g o
was having a problem; a number of other locals in the states actual ly withdrew;

so we so f t -peda led i t . And s t i l l , as a ma t te r o f f ac t , ou r l i s t o f shops wou ld
be better than what they have because of al l the number of problems. So that

I personal ly haven' t been engaged in the Al l ied for qui te some t ime.
In terv iewer : And i t hasn ' t rea l ly presented a prob lem because, as you

point out, you have more shops with your label than they have with the Al l ied
label anyway.

Turner: More shops of any consequence, you know, with the big houses,

rea l l y, t ha t we have . And pa r t i cu l a r l y f o r t he po l i t i ca l campa igns , t hey know,
i f they want the label on i t , they pret ty wel l have to get i t done in our shops.

Interv iewer: There was one other quest ion that I wanted to ask you just
as cur iosi ty. Then i f Greg has anything on merger that he wants to ask before

hand, go ahead.
In terv iewer I I : I m ight jus t want to ask what you knew about the s i tua t ion
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with Montreal and the merger convention, and I wanted to know whether you know
of any questions why that happened. I'm somewhat at a loss to try to explain
how the merger with the Photoengravers looked so good on paper and in the pre

liminary conventions; but when it got down to the floor of the convention with
the Lithographers, there seemed to erupt a terrific conflict. Can you explain
that? You were kind of in an interesting role of being from the Toronto local
where the president was from.

Turner: Well, actually there were really two issues as I see them. Ben

Robinson, who has been the legal counsel for Local #1 of New York for many,
many years, was also the legal counsel for the International. We found out
that there was really a conflict of interest in the job that he was doing. And
I do know that initially, when Ken Brown went to New York, he and Swayduck. . .

well, they were friendly because Ken had been on the International Council for
quite some time. And after he was there for a while, he realized that there was
this conflict of interest in the job that Ben Robinson was doing. And I can
remember at the International Council meeting, prior to that there was some

very heated arguments, and we had agreed at Mt. Gabriel. . . as a matter of fact,
Harry Spohnholtz made the motion and I seconded the motion and it has been a
sort of historic motion in the international, that Ben Robinson would have to
choose which he was going to. . . and that's the way we phrased it. . . that he
would have to choose which he was going to be legal counsel for, either the
International or New York. But he couldn't be for both. Then, of course, that
was one issue.

The second issue was that Swayduck, for some reason or other, was against
the merger from the start. And I guess that was really the big fight, start

ing in Miami and coming through to the convention in '63 in Montreal when they
actually walked out of the convention. I can remember some of the byplay that
was going on. Even though Ben Robinson didn't attend the convention, he was

holding meetings in an adjoining motel. I remember John Stagg attended the
meeting and came back with so many notes about what had gone on!! But he was
trying to undermine the whole idea of merger; and whether he felt it was a
loss to him or whatever, I don't really know.

Interviewer II: Would it have been a loss to him in terms of the strength
of his position in New York or a loss to him in relation to his strength in the
International? Was there any notion at that time as to why Swayduck should be
so opposed to merger?
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Turner: Well, I think the two things sort of t ied together. And the
fact that we had made the motion that Ben Robinson would have to make a de

cision, I think that sort of interfered with any plans they had because I do
know for a fact that it was a bitter pill for Ben Robinson because he had been
involved with the International for so long. And with he and Swayduck being
so close together, they had a tremendous influence on the International Council
with Swayduck being president of the biggest local and then with Ben being

legal adviser for the two. He knew the insides of what was going on in both
organizations.

Interviewer: Well, that's something that I've wanted to ask. You know,
here was Ken, he was the president. But here were two people. . . you know,
in most organizations, especially the International Council, which was not

really a very large organization, there are a couple of people always who kind
of sway it. You know, they come in well prepared, well documented, and every

body else kind of sits around and says, "Yes, that's a good idea. Couldn't
see anything wrong with that." And I get the impression that that's the role

Swayduck and Robinson were often playing.
Turner: Right. Yeah. As a matter of fact, I was so surprised, when I

first went to the International Council, to see that Ben Robinson attended

every meeting. Like, in our Council Boards in Toronto we sort of have an un
written rule that nobody attends those meetings unless he's summoned or in

vited; and we're very careful on who attends them. This was often confiden
tial information that was going on of the International, and you had Ben sit

ting there all the time. And quite often he would have an assistant or two
and almost played an important role. So that certainly he and Swayduck were
able to sway the Council because Swayduck is an expert on documenting infor
mation when he wants to make a presentation, plus the fact he's a terrific

speaker.
Interviewer II: Was some of this merger, with the merger happening at

a time when the power in the union was moving away from New York and away from
the Council's office and more into the forces that grew up, in response to the
dominance of New York on the Council?

Turner: Yes, I think that. . . it may have been coincidental and it may
not be, but with the merger and then also this other power struggle that was

going on happening, no doubt they could see that, if the merger was successful,
we l l . . .
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w e l l . . .
Interviewer: They were going to lose.
Turner: They were going to lose. Then they tried desperately to get

other locals around the International to follow them.
Interviewer: But would that have necessarily have been so? Wouldn't

it have been possible for them to take the Photoengravers into camp?
Turner: Who?
Interviewer: Swayduck and Robinson.
Turner: I don't think so because they—the way I understand it—didn't

BBBttk really have any control with the Photoengravers and had actually a
poor relat ionship. . .

Interviewer: In New York. . .
Turner: In New York. So that he really didn't have a base to start

from, you know. He never was close to them.
Interviewer: So that in other words, part of what I hear you saying a

litt le bit is the'fact that Ken, with his father, had this experience of good

relationships on a local level in Toronto with all of the printing trades puts
him in a unique position to press these various merger efforts at an inter
nat iona l leve l .

Turner: I would think so. Knowing full well that with the experience
we had, the other places where they've had trouble they've literally spent
small fortunes on these. Whereas if you can eliminate that, then you could

spend this money on fringe benefits. . .
Interviewer: . . . and schools.
Turner: And schools and things for the local. Your membership is going

to benefit. We certainly benefited in Toronto. If you can do that on a larger
and larger scale. . . the ultimate goal of course is that we.should have one
union in the graphic arts, and the jurisdictional problem would be licked.

In te rv iewer : R igh t .
Interviewer II: Could you talk just for a moment about some of these

benefits you mentioned—the school, the kind of possibilities the merger has
unearthed or encouraged? Can you give an example?

Turner: Well, I can tell you more about the benefits we have in our own
local. With the negotiations that we have right now, we've negotiated our

Lithographers Pension Plan that started in '53. Then there was a 10-year agree
ment to '63 and then a 10-year agreement to '73. That's just finished, and
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(~^ we're negotiating now. With that Pension Plan, with the early retirement from
Washington, and from our own little plan that started in '44, we can have some
of our older members retiring early at $500 a month. So that's a tremendous
change from just a few years ago when they couldn't look forward to anything
in the way of a pension. And then, locally, we are also able to do something
else for them because we have a very healthy Sick and Out-of-Work Plan.

Interviewer: You have a healthy sick and out-of-work plan? (laughter)
Turner: Yeah, how do you like that? (more laughter) The reason I'm say

ing that is that in Montreal they have a very sick Sick and Out of Work Plan!!!
But for example, if a chap retires—it doesn't matter if he retires at 60 or
65—if he hasn't drawn from that Sick and Out-of-Work plan in the last year,
to sort of help him into the new stage of just receiving a check once a month,
we give him an extra benefit from that plan. We give him $20 a week for a
year which helps with the transition of receiving a weekly check all his life
and then all of a sudden just a monthly check. That's an extra benefit that
he gets. And of course, we've introduced Supplemental Unemployment benefits
for the fellows that are out of work.

So that our local, I guess if anything, sort of goes overboard on benefits.
And this is one of the reasons that we're able to organize successfully in
Toronto. Because generally speaking, it doesn't matter what you're selling;
if you're selling unionism, people want to know what can you do for them over
and above signing a contract. So that we tell them that, with belonging to our
local, it's more of a lodge or a society rather than a cold industrial union
that just collects dues. This is our philosophy, that if on the international
level that sort of thing was jelled together, all that money that's gone down
the drain over the years with fighting jurisdictional disputes, that if that
was put into a constructive program. . . if we can do it with just a few people
in Toronto, think of what you could do when you're talking about thousands in
North America because there's millions of dollars involved in all of the locals
when you put them all together.

Interviewer: Sure. Well, this leads me to one thing that I've been want
ing to ask you and that is as it relates to the separatist movement, not only
in Montreal, but also there's a number of unions where the membership, princi
pally the Steelworkers I guess, where the Canadian membership is restive and

( > is talking about disaffi l iation. And I'm wondering how, if at all, that affects
your members in terms of the contacts that they may make locally with people
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from other unions who feel that way. I realize that this is not, you know. . .
at least it 's my impression that your members aren't talking about disaffi l iating
from the Graphic Arts, but how do they feel about the fact. . . I mean, sup

posing the Steelworkers would disaffiliate, it would make a big difference in
Canada•

Turner: Well, we don't really have the problem for two or three reasons,
I guess. Those members who knew Ken Brown and have been in the local since '59
don't feel that we're being short-changed. . .

I n t e r v i ewe r : R igh t .
Turner: . . . having their former local president as International presi

dent. Most of the members are pretty proud of it. Also the fact that A. W. Brown
. . . and then the fact that I'm on the Council. As a matter of fact, I guess
our representation is pretty high because, up until just recently, Earl Kinney,
a Canadian, was on. Now there's Gaston Doraf , and Dick Clarke Now with the
Bookbinders there's three more Canadians on there. So that we really don't have
the problem. But'they are having it in British Columbia, and they're having it
in Quebec. In Quebec it 's sort of a different problem. That's a separatist,
French problem.

Interviewer: Right. They don't even want to be in Canada!
Turner: That's r ight, yeah. What we're gett ing across the country, pri

marily from the industrial unions where their benefits are so low, they can't
see what the advantage is other than to have somebody come in from the Interna
tional and negotiate the contract because some of the industrial unions just
don' t have.any benef i ts . I f you' re off s ick, there is no s ick benef i t . I f you' re
out of work, there's no out-of-work benefit. So that this is one of the problems.
All they see is that the money is going across the border to the states. And of

course, they are fed that kind of information in the newspapers and from their
employers because a lot of the big industrial employers would very much like to
get rid of the International tie because they know that's where the strength is.
Then they also know that, if there is a strike, that's where they get their

support from, whereas if they were dealing with a little local in Canada, they
wouldn't have to worry about it. Of course, they're feeding it in the newspapers
to the general membership, and my feeling is that the general membership is being
misled. They're getting some of the facts, not all of the facts. Of course,
with some people, they don't like to be the little pebble on the beach anyway, so
the employers and the press are really capitalizing on them.
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Interviewer: Well, the employers are already south of the border in
terms of, even if they are Canadian nationals, a good bit of their money and
their support. ...

Turner: Oh, yeah. Seventy-one percent, I think it is. It's a fantastic
f igure.

Interviewer: So that any time an employer tells a worker its a shame his
dues are going across the border, he's obviously not being completely honest.

Turner: No, right. Yeah. And, of course, what we have also done. . .
as a matter of fact, there was just an item on this meeting this wee£. . . the
money that's collected for the International Early Retirement stays in Canada,
and the money that's collected for the Photoengravers Pension Plan stays in
Canada; and it's invested in Canada. Plus the fact that a good deal of the
per capita tax stays in Canada. I guess we're really a better example than
other unions because of our high benefits.

Interviewer: Yes. Well, I think other unions could learn from that.
Turner: Oh,' yeah.
Interviewer: If the Steelworkers would make that kind of administrative

("~ decision that the money collected in Canada would be invested in Canada, it
might be a different story.

Turner: Yeah. That's really a fact. And then, of course, all we need
to do in Toronto, because we've had three or four strikes in the last few years,
is just add up the amount of money that comes back in strike benefits because
of our high strike benefit.

Interviewer: What have the issues tended to be on these strikes that
you've had in recent years?

Turner: They are independent companies that changed hands in one case,
and an anti-union employer bought the firm so that there was no way we were go
ing to. . . we tried everything we knew and finally had to. . . well, he closed
up the place and moved out of the area, (laughter) So that was all right with
us. But naturally you hate to see a shop go. The other one was a situation
where we organized a small-business-form company that was actually bought out
by one of the big conglomerates, and it looked to us like they just issued a
directive down the line that you can go so far, but. . .

Interviewer II: Do you know the name of the conglomerate?
/ Turner: Yeah. Ronalds Federated. The small company was Commercial Papers,

Interviewer: This was Ron's Federated?
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Turner: Ronalds.
In terv iewer : Ronalds.
Turner: Ronalds Federated. Their head office is in Montreal. And we

have them as part of the master contract for the big plant. But this was a
small subsidiary with Commercial Papers doing business forms. The business-
form industry isn't organized by us in Canada the way it should be. But the
reason for that is that this change-over from the Printing Pressmen's, their

subsidiary is the k66 specialty—where they go in and organize the whole shop
door to door. This has been a drawback for us trying to get into such firms
as the Commerical Paper, where they just do business forms.

Interviewer: What do you mean by h(*6l
Turner: Well, h66 is the subsidiary of the Printing Pressmen's Union

that organize shops door to door.
I n t e r v i e w e r : I n d u s t r i a l l y ?
Turner: Yeah. Door to door. Such as the Moore's, the Moore's Corpora-

tion here and big shops like that that do that type of work.
Interviewer: Right. Okay. Well, is there anything that you want to add

to this discussion?
Turner: I d idn' t th ink I could add so much. ( laughter)
In te rv iewer : Oh, i t ' s g rea t . I th ink i t ' s been a f ine in te rv iew.
Turner: Oh, well, thank you very much.
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